
  
Richmond Planning Commission

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES FOR September 1st, 2021

Members 
Present:  

Lisa Miller,  Dan Mullen,  Chris Cole,  Virginia Clarke, Jake 
Kornfeld, Mark Fausel, Joy Reap, Chris Granda, Alison Anand, 

Members 
Absent:

 

Others Present: Ravi Venkataraman (Town Planner/Staff), Lauck Parke, 
Stephanie Rogers, Jim Monahan, Wright Preston, Tyler Merritt, 
Linda Donovan, Bill Donovan, Tom Frawley, Huseyin Sevincgil 
MMCTV

1. Welcome and troubleshooting

Virginia Clarke called the meeting to order at 7:05 pm. 

2. Public Comment for non-agenda items 

None

3. Adjustments to the Agenda

None

4. Approval of Minutes

Motion by Chris Cole seconded by Mark Fausel, to approve the August 18, 2021 Planning
Commission meeting minutes. 

Clarke asked the commission members if they had any items to discuss. Fausel noted that
regarding discussions about vehicle repair and small engine repair, he had offered suggestions
for zoning districts that would not allow both aforementioned uses and the minutes state that no
suggestion was offered.  Fausel said that he suggested allowing small engine repair in the
upper block and the Residential/Commercial District. Clarke noted that on page 4, on the fourth
line from the bottom, the word "that" should be "than".

Voting: 7-0 (Chris Granda and Joy Reap abstained). Motion carried. 

5.  Discussion on Williams Hill Road

Clarke said that the intent of today's discussion on this topic is for Planning Commission 
members to decide if the commission should provide testimony at the hearing, and what 
testimony the commission would like to offer. Clarke provided a summary of the issue under 
discussion. Clarke also said that the commission should hear from Wright Preston, who is in 
attendance and has experienced the process of reclassification and discontinuance of public 



roads with Snipe Ireland Road. 

Fausel said that he would like the commission to be present at the hearing, and offer testimony.
Fausel said that he would like the town to retain Williams Hill Road as a Class IV road as a 
minimum, and would ideally like the town to reclassify the section of Williams Hill Road as a 
Legal Trail, as long as this would not forego the town to be able to reclassify the trail as a Class
IV or higher road in the future. Clarke explained that Legal Trails can be reclassified as a road, 
akin to the reclassification of Class IV roads to a higher class roads. Alison Anand said that she
was in agreement with Fausel's perspective and had questions about the surveys of the 
adjacent properties, based on survey methods employed in the past. Lisa Miller said she would
support the retaining of the road because of the public good it provides the town and would 
support the establishment of a Legal Trail. 

Granda asked about the jurisdiction of the Planning Commission on this matter if the matter is 
to be decided by the Selectboard. Clarke said that the Planning Commission as the body that 
addresses planning issues for the town would be able to offer a recommendation to the 
Selectboard based on the language in the Town Plan. Venkataraman concurred that the 
commission would advise the Selectboard since the matter is a planning issue, and that any 
advice the commission provides should be derived from the Town Plan. Granda asked if the 
commission has already decided on whether it wanted to give testimony. Clarke said that this is
being discussed currently. Granda said that he would advocate for individuals to provide 
testimony but that the role of the commission on this matter was unclear to him.

Dan Mullen said that based on the correspondences from the attorneys--Mark Sperry and John
Kleisch--the town can have a legal trail without having to forfeit the right-of-way, and that he 
would recommend reclassifying the right-of-way to a legal trail because the legal trail would be 
minimally intrusive for the neighbors, could be a public benefit as a multi-use trail, and can be a
way for the Town to retain a three-rod right-of-way. Mullen said that the commission should give
an opinion because the Selectboard has solicited an opinion from the commission. 

Cole said that the commission should provide an opinion to the Selectboard, and that the 
opinion should be based from the Town Plan. Cole said that the question the Selectboard has 
to address is whether to discontinue the Class IV portion of Williams Hill Road, that the 
commission should focus on the primary question at hand, and that the question regarding 
reclassifying the right-of-way as a Legal Trail comes after the primary question is addressed. 
Cole said that his opinion is that the Town should not discontinue the road because the Town 
should not give up assets without a good reason and he has not heard a good reason yet.

Clarke said that the Selectboard can decide during the hearing whether to reclassify the Class 
IV section of Williams Hill Road into a Legal Trail, and therefore the question regarding 
reclassification is within the scope of the hearing. Venkataraman said that per statute, the 
Planning Commission is provided notice prior to the hearing for the discontinuance and 
reclassification of roads with the intent for the commission to be able to provide input on the 
matter. Venkataraman said that the hearing for the William Hill Road matter is combined 
hearing regarding the discontinuance of the road and the reclassification of the road, so both 
items are within the scope of the hearing. Cole said that the reclassification of Williams Hill 
Road is a Selectboard decision, not a Planning Commission decision because it is not germane



to the commission. Granda concurred. 

Reap said that the commission should attend the public hearing, that the road should not be 
thrown up, that she had concerns about retaining the right-of-way as a trail because it may 
restrict the ability to maintain the trail if vehicles aren't allowed on the Legal Trail, and concerns 
about reclassifying the potential trail into a road if the need arises. Fausel said that he finds that
the commission has jurisdiction for both questions under consideration as the Town's planning 
body, and that he prefers retaining Williams Hill Road as a Class IV road in case of 
emergencies that the Town would need an alternative to access Hinesburg. Fausel said that 
encouraging the use of Williams Hill Road as a trail would aid in transitioning the nearby 
residents of possible future impacts. 

Miller noted Josh Arneson's memo about how on Legal Trails, the Town can bar vehicular 
access, unlike Class IV roads. Clarke said that for Legal Trails the Town could establish an 
ordinance setting the rules on use of the trail. 

Jake Kornfeld said that the commission should offer an opinion to the Selectboard, that the 
right-of-way should be retained as a Legal Trail, and that that decision is for the Selectboard to 
make. 

Granda said that the commission's opinion should be rooted in the Town Plan. Mullen said that 
the Town Plan has language about expanding and maintaining trail access, and that the 
commission would be able to easily find that their opinion to retain Williams Hill Road as a 
Legal Trail has a basis in the Town Plan. Clarke referenced the community development, 
transportation, economic development, and natural resource sections of the Town Plan goals 
as basis for the commission's opinion.

Clarke asked Preston for his insights from past conversations about Snipe Ireland Road. 
Preston said that at that time he was dealing with ATV, motorcycle, and jeep traffic on Snipe 
Ireland Road across his property, that neither Richmond or Jericho had the obligation to 
maintain the Class IV road or Legal Trail, that he and his forester Mark Moltroup attempted to 
maintain the road and could not effectively, that he requested Jericho and Richmond to convert 
the Class IV road into a Legal Trail, and that the request was received well in both towns. 
Preston said that regard should be given to the existing wildlife communities and wildlife 
corridors in the decision making, that he had put together a natural resource study for Snipe 
Ireland Road to show the negative impacts of ATV, motorcycle and jeep traffic on the road. 
Preston said that he and the Towns crafted the ordinance together, and that the ordinance 
allows for abutters and power company to use the road. Preston recommended that the Town 
listen to the neighbors, to be mindful of the neighbors, and to go through the process slowly 
and thoroughly. Preston added that parking for trail use could become an issue.

Clarke said she would entertain a moment at this point of the discussion.

Motion by Cole to make the Planning Commission respond to the Selectboard's request to 
provide an advisory opinion on their hearing with the advisory opinion be that the Town does 
not discontinue the portion of Williams Hill Road under consideration. Seconded by Anand.



Mullen suggested amending the motion to add "to the extent the commission is asked to give 
an opinion on what to do with the road, the commission would like to reclassify the portion of 
Williams Hill Road into a Legal Trail."

Cole said he has no problem with reclassifying the right-of-way to a Legal Trail, does not think it
is the commission's jurisdiction, and that the goals of the Town Plan to provide access to 
bicycles and pedestrians can be achieved with a Class IV road. Anand said she wanted to 
make sure the Town retains rights to the road. Cole said his motion is straightforward stating 
that the Town should retain the right-of-way and that Mullen's addition makes the 
recommendation to reclassify the Class IV road to a Legal Trail. Clarke clarified the 
reclassification process from a Legal Trail to Class IV road.  Reap asked for Clarke's opinion 
and said that it didn't appear as though the commission reached a conclusion on the question 
of reclassification. Reap said that if the road were to become a Legal Trail, there should be a 
caveat to allow for vehicular access in emergency situations and maintenance. Clarke said that
she would be in favor of reclassifying the road into a Legal Trail as it would give the Town more 
control over access restrictions compared to a Class IV road. 

Cole proposed amending Mullen's proposed amendment with "should the Town decide to 
reclassify Williams Hill Road to a Legal Trail, the Planning Commission recommends allowing 
vehicular access to those maintaining the Legal Trail on the Town's behalf strictly for 
maintenance purposes". Mullen said he is fine with this amendment, and that granting vehicular
access permits could be an option. Anand concurred. 

Fausel highlighted the value of having a Class IV road in case of emergencies at the Town's 
disposal, and that one can put a trail on a Class IV road but not a road on a Legal Trail. Cole 
clarified that the key difference between Class IV roads and Legal Trails is the restrictions 
Towns can place for vehicular access, that Towns cannot bar vehicle access on Class IV road 
but can on a Legal Trail. 

Kornfeld asked for how this matter came about in the first place. Fausel said that the idea of 
putting in place a trail was presented to the Selectboard by the Trails Committee, and the 
abutting property owners filed a petition to discontinue the road. Kornfeld said that reclassifying
the road to a Legal Trail and encourage increased trail usage would not address the neighbor's 
concerns or address the issue at hand, and that retaining the right-of-way as a Class IV road 
would offer more flexibility at this point. Anand said that the discussion on reclassification is 
extraneous at the moment. 

Reap asked for the motion to be repeated. Venkataraman paraphrased the initial motion and 
first amendment to the motion, and deferred to Cole to clarify the motion.

Cole said that tackling each issue one motion at a time would be best at this point. Clarke 
asked Cole to restate his first motion. 

Cole said the initial motion was "to have the Planning Commission advise the Selectboard not 
to discontinue the Class IV right-of-way on Williams Hill Road." Anand said she still supported 
this motion



Voting: 8-0 (Granda abstained). Motion carried. 

Clarke asked for motions for further advice. 

Motion by Mullen that if the commission is asked by the Selectboard for advice about the 
reclassification question, the commission recommends the reclassification of the portion of 
Williams Hill Road under consideration into a Legal Trail with maintaining the three-rod right-of-
way. Seconded by Miller.

Cole asked Mullen if maintaining the right-of-way means that the Town expends money on 
maintaining the right-of-way. Mullen said no, that the intent is to retain the width of the right-of-
way and not narrow the right-of-way to the width of the trail, referencing the email from the 
Town Attorney. Reap clarified that the motion is only for if the commission is asked for their 
opinion about the reclassification, and said that she would like verbiage about allowing 
motorized vehicles on the trail for maintenance purposes. Kornfeld said that he would be fine 
with this motion but does not understand the benefits of reclassifying the right-of-way, and the 
role of the commission on this question. Clarke asked Kornfeld if he would be in support of a 
motion to recommend establishing a trail. Kornfeld said that he would prefer the motion to be 
straightforward, pertaining only to the first question.

Clarke restated the motion: "if the commission is asked by the Selectboard for advice about the
reclassification question, the commission recommends the reclassification of the portion of 
Williams Hill Road under consideration into a Legal Trail that will retain the three-rod right-of -
way and would allow for the ability for motorized vehicles to apply for a permit for trail 
maintenance and emergency purposes". 

Voting: 4-5. Motion failed. 

Clarke asked for additional motions. Venkataraman asked how the commission will be 
transmitting information to the Selectboard, and recommended that the commission appoint a 
designee. Clarke said that she will provide the testimony as the chair and provide written 
comments. 

Motion by Cole for the commission to support the use of a trail on the Class IV road. Fausel 
seconded. Miller asked if the minutes will be provided to the Selectboard. Clarke said that the 
meeting is being recorded. Clarke asked Cole to restate the motion. Cole said that maintaining 
a trail on a Class IV road would be consistent with the Town Plan. Clarke asked for clarification 
on Cole's motion. 

Cole revised the motion to: Motion to acknowledge that a trail on a Class IV right-of-way would 
be consistent with the Town Plan. Seconded by Fausel. 

Clarke asked for clarification on whether the term "Class IV" is necessary for the motion if the 
intent is to give the Selectboard leeway in its decision. Cole said that the motion as-is stands. 

Voting: 7-0. Motion carried. 



Clarke said that she will prepare written remarks and will attend the public hearing. Cole 
requested the written comments be distributed once it's prepared. 

6.  Discussion on Vehicle Fueling Stations, Powered Vehicle Service, and Powered 
Machinery Service uses 

Clarke provided an overview of the topic, an overview of recent changes to the draft language, 
and said that the discussion today should address the EV charging requirements. Anand asked
if two EV chargers should be required instead of one EV charger. Granda said that usually 
multiple DC fast chargers are installed to capitalize on economies of scale but the equipment 
are generally expensive at the moment, and said that the current proposed requirement for one
EV charger was a reasonable first step. Fausel supported requiring a second DC fast charger, 
and recommended including in the definition "see 'DC Fast Charger' definition" in parentheses. 
Clarke recommended adding "vehicle" before "DC Fast Charger".

Tom Frawley recommended: removing the listing of fuels and including language that deferred 
to the state so that the definition is kept up-to-date; allowing six vehicle fueling islands to serve 
up to 12 vehicles at a time; and removing the DC fast charger requirement due to potential 
impacts on the utility and the lack of widespread use of electric vehicles currently. Frawley said 
that he is installing two DC fast chargers in a location in White River Junction. Clarke asked for 
clarification regarding the term "pumping islands". Frawley said that they are proposing three 
islands, six fueling dispensers serving up to 12 vehicles. Fausel asked for clarification on the 
previous proposed plan regarding fueling islands. Huseyin Sevincgil presented the previously 
presented site plans to the commission, clarifying that an "island" in industry terms is a fueling 
dispenser nowadays and that in the past a fueling island used to be one long island with two 
fueling dispensers. 

Cole asked Sevincgil if this proposed plan is the modified plan. Sevincgil confirmed that it was, 
that it was based on feedback from the commission and Venkataraman and that they may be 
able to tie into municipal sewer. 

Cole asked Frawley why he was installing DC fast chargers at White River Junction. Frawley 
said it was to accommodate tourism-based traffic and to adapt for future traffic. Cole asked why
Frawley did not want to install DC fast-chargers in Richmond. Frawley clarified that they are 
planning to install three DC fast chargers in Richmond. Cole asked when the DC fast chargers 
would be built. Frawley said that the DC fast chargers would be part of the initial build. Clarke 
asked if Frawley would be in compliance with the proposed regulation but objecting to the 
principle of the regulation. Frawley affirmed. 

Clarke cited the Global Warming Solutions Act goal of having 25 percent of the vehicle fleet to 
be electric by 2035. 

Miller asked if the chargers would be operational when the project is developed and if the utility 
company has given permission. Frawley affirmed and said that they have not engaged with the 
utility yet. 

Fausel asked about how Frawley intends to add two additional fueling islands. Frawley said 



that congestion would be relieved with the addition of two islands and that they would be 
building on top of the existing septic tank. Fausel asked the commission about why it decided 
on four island instead of six islands. Clarke said that the conversation at the time had to do with
scale. Fausel asked Frawley how many islands were at the Randolph station. Frawley said five 
islands, but that they are layed out in an unstacked manner underneath a long canopy. Clarke 
asked how many cars can be served at one time at the Randolph station. Frawley said ten. 

Fausel had concerns about the potential impacts of potential six-island gas stations that could 
have the same size and massing as the Randolph station. 

Frawley explained that with the configuration of islands, by having unstacked islands set in a 
straight line, the traffic circulation improves, and that by having stacked islands, circulation is 
constrained by vehicles using fuel dispensers, and therefore, he would be able to serve the 
same amount of vehicles in a stacked configuration of islands with less islands in an unstacked
configuration. 

Fausel asked if there was a way to allow for Frawley's proposal for six islands without allowing 
for another gas station with a larger building mass. Cole suggested language that would allow 
for six stacked islands. Clarke suggested a maximum area for the canopy. Sevincgil had 
reservations about placing restrictions based on area. Venkataraman said that the easiest 
method he could think of would be to require stacked parking for vehicle fueling. 

Fausel asked Bill and Linda Donovan for comments. Bill Donovan said that the direction of the 
industry is toward unstacked islands because it allows for easier circulation. Bill Donovan also 
said that regulating square footage wouldn't help if the commission is trying to prevent large 
massing. Frawley said that providing four unstacked dispensers would be as efficient as six 
stacked dispensers. Fausel suggested regulating the number of cars serviced per hour or 
vehicle trip ends. Frawley said that gauging traffic would vary based on location and price point.

Clarke concluded the discussion, noting that conversations will be ongoing 

7. Other Business, Correspondence, and Adjournment

Clarke asked the commission to review the other proposed definitions, and nonconforming 
uses and structures for the next meeting. 

Motion by Cole, seconded by Miller to adjourn the meeting. Voting: unanimous. Motion 
carried. The meeting adjourned at 9:13 pm.

Respectfully submitted by Ravi Venkataraman, Town Planner


